Authority: Toronto and East York Community Council Item 7.13,

as adopted by City of Toronto Council on July 16, 17, 18 and 19, 2007

Enacted by Council: December 13, 2007

### **CITY OF TORONTO**

## BY-LAW No. 1359-2007

To designate the property at 150 St. George Street (William Crowther House and South Wing) as being of cultural heritage value or interest.

WHEREAS authority was granted by Council to designate the property at 150 St. George Street (William Crowther House and South Wing) as being of cultural heritage value or interest; and

WHEREAS the *Ontario Heritage Act* authorizes the Council of a municipality to enact by-laws to designate real property, including all the buildings and structures thereon, to be of cultural heritage value or interest; and

WHEREAS the Council of the City of Toronto has caused to be served upon the owners of the land and premises known as 150 St. George Street and upon the Ontario Heritage Trust, Notice of Intention to designate the property and has caused notice of this by-law to be posted on the City's web site for a period of 30 days in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 162, Notice, Public, Article II, § 162-4, Notice requirements under the *Ontario Heritage Act*; and

WHEREAS the reasons for designation are set out in Schedule "A" to this by-law; and

WHEREAS no notice of objection was served upon the Clerk of the municipality;

The Council of the City of Toronto HEREBY ENACTS as follows:

- 1. The property at 150 St. George Street, more particularly described in Schedule "B" and shown on Schedule "C" attached to this by-law, is designated as being of cultural heritage value or interest.
- 2. The City Solicitor is authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be registered against the property described in Schedule "B" to this by-law in the proper Land Registry Office.
- 3. The City Clerk is authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be served upon the owners of the property at 150 St. George Street and upon the Ontario Heritage Trust and to cause notice of this by-law to be posted on the City's web site for a period of 30 days in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 162, Notice, Public, Article II, § 162-4, Notice requirements under the *Ontario Heritage Act*.

ENACTED AND PASSED this 13th day of December, A.D. 2007.

GLORIA LINDSAY LUBY,

ULLI S. WATKISS City Clerk

Deputy Speaker

(Corporate Seal)

#### **SCHEDULE "A"**

#### REASONS FOR DESIGNATION

### Description

The property at 150 St. George Street is worthy of designation under Part IV of the *Ontario Heritage Act* for its cultural heritage value or interest, and meets the criteria for municipal designation prescribed by the Province of Ontario under the three categories of design, historical and contextual value. Located on the west side of St. George Street, south of Bloor Street West, the 2½-storey house form building was completed in 1889 and converted for institutional uses in the 20th century. The property was included on the City of Toronto Inventory of Heritage Properties in 2005, and authority has been granted for a Heritage Easement Agreement. The Reasons for Designation include the William Crowther House and the portions of the south wing (1960) described in the heritage attributes below. The carriage house originally attached to the rear (west) wall of the house has been demolished.

## Statement of Cultural Heritage Value

The William Crowther House is architecturally significant as a good example of a late 19th century house with Queen Anne Revival styling that typifies the large-scale residential buildings that were constructed along St. George Street when it was part of a prosperous residential neighbourhood between Bloor Street West and the core of the University of Toronto campus. The Queen Anne Revival style is identified by its mixture of materials and details, typical of the blending of architectural influences at the close of the 1800s.

Historically, the property is associated with the development of the University of Toronto, which gradually acquired the late 19th century houses along St. George Street and converted them for institutional uses. The house form building was completed in 1889 for William Crowther, a Toronto merchant who resided there until 1926. The following year, the China Inland Mission, an international organization formed in the mid 19th century to spread Christianity throughout China, occupied the premises. The Canadian Medical Association, a national organization of Canadian physicians, purchased the site in 1955 as the location of "CMA House" and commissioned Toronto architects Allward and Gouinlock to design the south wing in 1960. The property currently houses the University of Toronto's Department of Economics.

The William Crowther House has contextual importance as it reflects the evolution of St. George Street, south of Bloor Street West, from a late 19th century residential enclave to a major corridor through the University of Toronto campus lined with important buildings that are recognized on the City's heritage inventory.

# Heritage Attributes

The heritage attributes of the <u>William Crowther House</u> related to its design value as a good example of Queen Anne Revival styling are found on the exterior walls and roof, consisting of:

- The 2½-storey plan under a hipped gable roof with gabled dormers and gables with elaborate woodwork (the brick chimneys have been altered).
- The red brick cladding with brick, sandstone and wood trim.
- The principal (east) façade, with the two-storey bay window, the open wood porch with intricate detailing that protects the main entrance, and the single flat-headed window opening surmounting the entry.
- On the side (north and south) elevations, the fenestration consisting of segmentally-arched and flat-headed window openings placed according to the interior arrangement.

The rear (west) wall of the William Crowther House is <u>not</u> included in the Reasons for Designation.

Designed in the Georgian Revival style and attached to the south wall of the William Crowther House, the heritage attributes of the <u>south wing</u> are related to its historical value in reflecting the 20th century evolution of the property for institutional use. The heritage attributes are found on the remaining portions of the principal (east) and south facades, consisting of:

- The two-storey walls under a flat roof with a parapet and a cornice with dentils.
- The red brick cladding, with brick, stone and wood trim.
- The flat-headed window openings with voussoirs, keystones and multi-paned sash.

## **SCHEDULE "B"**

Part of PIN 21211-0099 (LT) Lots 24 and 25 and the north half of Lot 23 on Plan D207 as set out in EP139275

City of Toronto and Province of Ontario Land Titles Division of the Toronto Registry Office (No. 66)

The hereinbefore described land being delineated by heavy outline on Sketch No. PS-2007-289 dated November 22, 2007, as set out in Schedule "C".

#### SCHEDULE "C"

